
AGENDA 

COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES BOARD MEETING 

Cordova Library Conference Room 

June 8, 2011 – 7:00 PM 

 

CCMC’S core purpose is to deliver quality health care locally. 
President 
David Allison 
 term expires 03/12 

 
Vice-President 
Kristin Carpenter 
 term expires 08/12 

 
Secretary 
Sandra Cleveland Aspen, PhD, RN 
 term expires 08/12 

 
Board Members 
Elmer (E.J.) Cheshier 
 term expires 08/13 

Tim Joyce 
 term expires 08/11 

Kerin Kramer 
 term expires 08/12 

Vacant 
NVE Tribal Council Rep 
 term expires 08/13 

 
Acting CEO 
Stephen Sundby, PhD

 

I. OPENING  

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call – David Allison, Sandra Aspen, Kristin                                                                                                                     

Carpenter, EJ Cheshier, Timothy Joyce, Kerin 

Kramer 

C. Establishment of a Quorum 

II. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM 

VISITORS 

A. Guest Speaker 

B. Audience Comments (limited to 3 minutes per 

speaker). Speaker must give name and item on 

the agenda which they are addressing. 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR – 

A. Approval of Minutes 

1. HSB Meeting Minutes – 5/11/2011…….Page 1

 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE –  

A. Administrator’s Report…………………………………………………………………………………..Page 8 

B. President’s Report 

C. Finance Report……………………………………………………………………………………….………Page 9 

D. City Council 

E. Native Village of Eyak 

VII. ACTION ITEMS –  

A. Privileging of Karen Morrissette, MD 

B. Privileging of Lorren Weaver, MD 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS – 

A. Management RFP 

B. Election of Officers 

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION –   



A. The board shall give members of the public the opportunity to comment on matters 

which are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board and are appropriate for 

discussion in an open session. Public comment limited to 3 minutes per speaker. 

X. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS  

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
*Executive Session: Subjects that may be considered in executive session are: 1)  Matters, immediate knowledge of which 

would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the public entity; 2)  Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation 

and character of any person, provided that person my require a public discussion; 3)  Matters which by law, city charter, or 

ordinance are required to be confidential; 4)  Matters involving consideration of government records that by law are not 

subject to public disclosure; 5)  Direction to an attorney or labor negotiator regarding the handling of specific legal matters or 

labor negotiations. 

 



 

 
1 

                                                                          Minutes 

                                                  Community Health Services Board 

                                                  Cordova Library Conference Room 

                                                           May 11, 2011 – 7:00 PM 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL –  

 

Sandra Aspen called the HSB meeting to order at 7:01pm.  Board members present: 

David Allison (by teleconference), Sandra Aspen, Kristin Carpenter (by teleconference), 

Tim Joyce, and Kerin Kramer.  Absent: EJ Cheshier. A quorum was established. 

 

CCMC staff present:  Stephen Sundby, PhD (Acting CEO, by teleconference), Zhiyong Li 

(CFO), Tim James (HR).  

 

II. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS -  None 

 

III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST -  None 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA   

 

 M/Joyce, S/Kramer: Move to approve the agenda. 

 

 A vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas. -  0 nays.  Motion passed. 

 

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  

 

 A. Approval of Minutes   

 

M/Joyce, S/Kramer: Move to approve the Health Services Board minutes for 

4/13/2011, and 4/25/11. 

 

A vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas – 0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

VI. REPORTS AND CORRESPONDENCE   

 

 A. Administrator’s Report  

   



 

 
2 

Sundby reported he spoke with Ilanka Clinic and its decision to send laboratory work to 

Alaska Native Medical Center (ANMC) in Anchorage was made to save its patients 

money. Labs needed immediately will still use CCMC.   

 

Sundby reported that Wrangell Medical Center’s CEO, Noel Rea and Korre Pieper, 

Physical Therapist, visited CCMC again on Monday April 18; Wrangell’s CFO, Olinda 

White, and QI Coordinator, Mari Selle, visited on April 27. 

 

Sound Alternatives has submitted the continuation grants for both the Division of 

Health and Developmental Disabilities through “e-grant”.  Sound Alternatives had a 

booth at the Community Health Fair on April 30th; people were surveyed about where 

they could locate more information about mental health.   

 

CCMC participated in the Health Fair. Between 75 and 100 people came through to get 

labs.  As in the past, CCMC extended the period another two weeks resulting in up to 10 

more people per day at the lab. 

 

Sundby reported while advertising for a permanent LCSW, Mavon Lee, is contracted to 

be in Cordova once a quarter to ensure Medicare compliance for Long Term Care.   

 

Robin James was hired as the Nursing Supervisor, which will allow the Director of 

Nursing to spend more time working on quality improvement and compliance.   

 

Sundby reported than an Advanced Nurse Practitioner from Missouri was interviewed 

on-site; she has been asked to submit an application so that personal and professional 

references may be checked. Staff had mixed reviews and the applicant is unwilling to do 

a trial run in Cordova.  A Social Worker/Registered Nurse was also interviewed on site 

but she may have accepted a position outside.   

 

Joyce asked what the costs are for ANMC versus CCMC’s costs for the labs. Sundby 

responded that Ilanka’s costs are zero when it sends labs to ANMC.   

 

Joyce asked, relative to the onsite interviews, if CCMC is pushing too hard, further 

stating that if there’s not a real bona-fide interest we’re spinning our wheels. Joyce also 

stated that there should be a way to obtain references before a visit is paid for – that 

the process seems to be backwards. Sundby responded the nurse practitioner was 

already in state, so the advantage was to pay only for a visit from Anchorage. For the 

second opening, it was attempted to hire her as a locum, but she would not commit 



 

 
3 

until she first saw the place. Joyce said he understood that it is difficult to recruit to 

Cordova sight unseen, and that the visit from Anchorage seemed to make sense, but 

suggested that CCMC conduct reference checks prior to an applicant’s visit so that we 

don’t push ahead too soon. James clarified that it was a misprint in the Administrator’s 

report and that we were checking references only for the Nurse Practitioner.  James 

reported that a recruitment meeting is scheduled at the hospital to discuss the issue. 

Joyce summarized that normally qualified people are brought in after references are 

checked; as long as references are checked before they are brought here then that is 

proper procedure. 

  

B. President’s Report   

 

Allison reported that he should return to Cordova within three weeks. 

 

C. Finance Report  

 

Li first responded to a question from Carpenter on the February report regarding the 

discrepancies between the YTD budget vs. the YTD actual City funding and in-kind.  Li 

explained that there is supposed to be $150K in matching funds for capital 

improvements on top of the $400K the city provides on an annual basis. The $150K is in 

the budget, but the hospital would have to fund an equal amount to get it.  If that’s the 

case, CCMC hasn’t received it based on the 2009 and 2010 audited statements. Li 

reported that there was a discrepancy of over $300K in the in-kind non-City revenue.  Li 

explained that one item is the PERS contribution from the state, which is an end-of-year 

adjustment based on 13 percent of the salary expense. This doesn’t explain the full 

discrepancy, but if CCMC budgeted salary for three FTE providers, that would increase 

the total salary expense, and thus the state contribution. CCMC’s salary expense is 

reduced because of using locums. Li further reported that the Weaver funding is a 

budgeted item, but that revenue was never accrued; this is a bookkeeping discrepancy. 

Li recommended that the flow-through funding be removed from the budget, because it 

doesn’t impact the bottom line and inflates the budget number. Carpenter asked Li to 

clarify which items he would take out.  Li responded that items like the state PERS 

contribution, where money is not actually received, but still results in a book entry. 

Those items that do not impact the bottom line could be left out of the budget picture. 

Joyce clarified that there would be corresponding expenses. Li confirmed that and 

Kramer replied that a journal entry could be applied for the auditors.    

 



 

 
4 

Li reported for March that the bad news was the loss of $115K – a net loss of $94K and 

$20K in depreciation.  Li also explained that he made a significant revision for November 

of last year for the $132K paid to Medicare. The auditor made an adjusting entry of 

$117K to last fiscal year and at the same time, the original entry should have been 

reversed. Li reported that the total YTD loss is $144K.  Following a review of the graphs, 

Li reported that next month, he will add 2 graphs to show the month-to-month revenue 

versus expenses, which should give the Board a better picture of the finances. The trend 

is that CCMC is spending more than it is making and it is spending more each month. 

 

Carpenter asked for the good news.  Li replied that the good news is the opportunities 

we have; he attended a Critical Access Hospital CFO meeting in Anchorage where he 

learned a lot. 

 

Carpenter referred to page 15, where professional services were up by 63%.  Li 

explained that annualized, locums cost $400K each year, but contract providers cost 

more like $170-210K, or $280K with benefits.  Joyce replied that would only be true if 

we had locums full time.  Li and Sundby clarified that locums are being used all the time. 

Li further clarified that the auditors included it as an improvement area.  Li responded 

that we need to maximize the Medicare payment and he will work with Marty to do an 

interim report. Li further clarified that CCMC will update charge-master by June 30th, 

and in 2-3 weeks CCMC is participating in a state-funded third-party, objective charge-

master review. That will bring the revenue up. 

 

Li and Sundby discussed when CCMC last updated charge-master. Joyce stated that in 

the present position, CCMC needs to be sure that it is getting what it can and update 

every two years at a minimum. Sundby replied that every other place updates yearly.  

Joyce replied that is a good goal for CCMC to target. Li cautioned that there may be a 

limit as to how much CCMC can increase at a single time. 

 

Carpenter thanked Li and stated that she appreciated the analysis; that it is a big help to 

the Board.  Joyce and Aspen agreed.   

 

D. City Council   

 

No report. 

 

E. Native Village of Eyak  

 



 

 
5 

No report. 

 

VII. ACTION ITEMS   

 

 A. Privileging of Jere Alm 

 

M/Joyce, S/Kramer: Move to approve the privileging of Jere Alm as Physician Assistant 

at CCMC. 

 

James reported that Alm is an independent contractor, not a locum, and is willing to 

return when needed.  Alm is markedly less expensive than a locum.   

 

A vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas – 0 nays. Motion passed. 

 

B. Privileging of Irene Rooney   

 

M/Joyce, S/Kramer: Move to approve the privileging of Irene Rooney as a Nurse 

Practitioner at CCMC. 

 

A vote was made on the motion: 5 yeas – 0 nays.  Motion passed. 

 

VIII. DISCUSSION ITEMS   

 

 A. CODING CONCEPTS Update to 1st Quarter Onsite Report 

 

Nichole Hunt reported that this visit was not a scheduled quarterly visit, but this report 

merges the mid-quarter report and her 1st quarter report.  Hunt reported that at 

previous on-sites, she had not met with administration.  Now, with Sundby, things are 

running smoothly, including an initial meeting, an exit meeting, and a meeting with the 

Department Managers.  Hunt reported that she devises a plan, and the Manager’s are 

able to adjust the priorities.  A close-out meeting with the managers has been 

implemented. Moving forward, she won’t visit on a calendar quarter, but will base her 

visits on the presence of key staff. 

 

With respect to the Business Office, Hunt highlighted that CCMC should use locums who 

were used in the past to ease the need to enroll new providers in Medicare/Medicaid, 

or schedule the providers well in advance. Hunt also discussed the charge-master 

update and the need to bring everything current first as well as authorizing new 



 

 
6 

services.  Hunt reviewed improvements in pre-certification, admission, and QA.  Hunt 

discussed several self-pay issues that staff is working on, to include treatment of non-

emergent patients in the ER and an on-site financial counselor to obtain insurance 

information or pre-screen for alternative coverage options. 

 

Hunt reported that thanks to everyone’s’ participation, efforts to organize the facility’s 

medical records are moving forward in preparation for the transition to electronic 

records. 

 

Regarding the medical staff, Hunt reported that the dictation process needs to be 

streamlined; locums and other temporary providers don’t always understand CCMC 

practices. Hunt emphasized that it will require Administrative and HSB involvement to 

improve the transcription delays, which pose a liability issue to the hospital. 

 

Hunt cited the Cordova Health Fair as an example of self-referral instances that must 

have an associated provider to protect CCMC’s liability. Li clarified that CCMC switched 

the provider with approval from Quest prior to the Health Fair.  Hunt stated that this 

was all that was needed to close out this issue. 

 

Joyce commented that he is assuming that many of the items in the report are going to 

be addressed to improve efficiencies and the bottom line. Hunt agreed and praised 

administration and the fact that her report was distributed to managers for the first 

time. She reiterated that they are working together and moving forward. 

 

IX. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION   

 

Corinne Erickson thanked the Board for their time and asked if the Board is still working 

on the strategic planning.  Aspen replied that we are done with the planning and it is 

down to a decision by City Council.  Joyce added that there’s been no decision yet. 

 

X. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS  

  

Aspen thanked one audience member for her participation. Aspen commented that as 

someone new to Cordova as of May 2009, she wanted to thank all the staff members 

involved. She has seen a tremendous change in morale, teamwork, and enthusiasm for 

moving forward.  It’s a 180 degree change.  There is now a professional Board and she 

gave credit to the Board members for sticking it out. 

 



 

 
7 

Allison echoed the comments to staff and stated he’s seen a big change.  He 

commented that he enjoyed hearing Nichole say that everyone is working together. He 

also commented that with respect to a decision following the strategic planning, the 

RFP’s have been sent, and City Council and the Health Services Board will review the 

responses. Allison thanked Aspen for chairing the meeting. 

 

XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION   

 

 None.  

  

XIII. ADJOURNMENT  

 

M/Joyce, S/Kramer: Move to adjourn.  Unanimously approved.  Meeting adjourned at 

8:25 pm. 

 

 

 

 

 

Transcribed by:  Laura Cloward 

 

 Reviewed by:   Sandra Aspen, HSB Secretary 

 
  



 

 
8 

 

 

To:   Health Services Board 

From:  Stephen Sundby, CCMC Acting Administrator 

RE:   Administrator Report 

Date:  June 8, 2011 

 

1. Wrangell Medical Center’s Director of Nursing, Sue Nelson, RN, RAC-CT and their Director of 
Information Technology, Bob Shymanski visited CCMC on Monday, May 9th and Tuesday, May 10th. 
They were given a tour of CCMC and were able to ask questions from the staff that were available. 

 

2. Many staff are requesting information regarding how the Strategic Planning process is continuing. 
The RFP process and status has been explained, but they are asking for details about the RFP scoring 
and selection process. 

 

3. CCMC staff are being contacted by the media regarding the RFP process. Staff have been instructed 
to have the media contact the City of Cordova. 

 

4. The FY2012 Budget is in the process of being developed. A first draft is a part of the Financial Report. 
I would recommend a HSB Finance Committee be established to work with the executive staff 
during further budget revisions and during audit times.    

 

5. Laura Cloward has updated the CCMC webpage. We will continue to keep it current. 
 

6. Staffing:  
 

a. We are continuing to advertise nationally and through the State of Alaska ALEXsys job bank 
for a .5 FTE licensed clinical social worker (LCSW) to fill the vacancy for Long Term Care 
(LTC). A master’s level social worker is a requirement for LTC social services. 

 

b. Mavon Lee, LCSW is contracted to provide Social Service consultations in order to keep Long 
Term Care in compliance with the regulations. She will provide on-site visits on at least a 
quarterly basis. 

 

c. Sound Alternatives is advertising for a full-time clinician with any Alaska mental health 
licensure due to a lack of LCSW applicants. An LCSW will continue to be the preferred 
candidate. 

 

d. There are two new Physician Assistant graduates that are showing interest in locating to 
Cordova and working for CCMC. At the time this was written, one applicant was being 
scheduled for telephone interviews. 

 

7. Stephen Sundby and Zhiyong Li are meeting on Fridays at 9:00 AM with Angela Arnold and Penney 
Benson (NVE) to coordinate and collaborate where opportunities arise. 

 

a. The lease with Ilanka Community Health Center is due for renewal. 



 

 
9 



 

  

10 

12 



 

Page 1 of 2  

11 



 

Page 2 of 2  

12 



 

   

13 



 

Page 1 of 2   
14 



 

Page 2 of 2   15 



 

  

16 

 



 

  

17 



 

CCMC BUDGET 6/2/2011  

18 



 

CCMC BUDGET 6/2/2011  

19 

19 



 

CCMC BUDGET 6/2/2011  

20 

 

20 



 

CCMC BUDGET 6/2/2011  

21 

 

16 17 
18 

21

1 


